BSVM AND ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To
The Members of
Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS Tolls Private Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Ayodhya Gorakhpur
SMS Tolls Private Limited (“the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forming part thereof.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013
(the “Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS") specified
under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31
March 2023, and its Profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income}, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, Our responsibilibes under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Emphasis on Matter
We draw attention to Note No. 42 of the standalone financial statements, wherein the company is in

the process of merger with its parent company SMS Limited after due approval of the same, that
cmnplnywﬂlcmelunﬁtandal-iﬂumtsmdIahhhuswﬂlh:whmntdhﬂwmergedm
Our opinion is not modified in this matter,
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irmegularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to lssue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but Is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judg
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk|
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
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from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of managements use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ablity to
continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to maodify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the owerall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for
our audit opinion on Standalone Financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with govermnance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report] Order, 2020 (“the order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicak
2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best ¢
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit
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(b} in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of Financial
Statement have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with relevant rules there-under.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act

(fi With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure
-8

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

{) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at 31-03-2023 on its financial
position in Note No.34 of its Standalone Financial Statement.

(if) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

(iif) There are no amounts reguired to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company during the year ended on 31 March 2023

() (2} The Management has represented that to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts if any , have been advanced or loaned or
invested by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
N

(b) The Management has represented that ,to the best of it's knowledge and belief , no funds other
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts if any , have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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{c) Based on our audit procedures nothing has come to our notice that can cause us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

FOR BSVM and Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 1237161W

Prateek Vaidya
Partner
M. No. 118792

Place: Nagpur
Date: 30/08/2023

UDIN: 22118353 BGW YD I 3#54
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Annexure-A referred to in our independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company
on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023, we report that

i. (a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars and location of Property,
Plant and Equipment The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) As per information and explanation given to us, The Company has a regular program of
physical verification of its Fixed assets under which Fixed assets are verified in a phased manner
over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this program, certain fixed assets were
verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification the
Property.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the records of
the Company examined by us, The Company does not own any immovable property, thus Para 3
(i} (€) s not applicable the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use of
assets) or intangible asset of both during the financial year.

(@) There is no any proceeding have been initiated or pending against company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder.

i, (a) The Company has conducted physical verification of inventory at regular intervals. The
discrepancies noticed on physical verification were not material in relation to the operations of the
Company and the same were dealt with in the books of account

(b} According to the information and expianations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial nstitutions on
the basis of security of current assets during the year.

iil.  In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, The Company has made
investments in, provided guarantee, and granted loans or advance in nature of loan , unsecured,
to companies or any other parties during the year, in respect of which:

3

a. As per the information and explanation given, the Company has provided loans , advance in
the nature of loan and guarantees Ofs at the end of the year and details of which are given .
below:
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Rs In Lakhs

Particular Guarantees Security Loans
Aggregate amount granted during the Year
-Subsidiary

-Associates

-Joint Ventures

-Others
.-.Tml._

Aggregate Amount Ofs at the Balance sheet
date:

-Subsidiary z x
-Associates - 5,B68.92 924.62
-Joint Ventures - - -
-Others - - 431.76
Total - 5868.92 1,356.38
Out of Above Repayable on demand without
specifying any terms of Repayment

r - 1,356.38

b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all
loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the
Company's .
¢. The Company has granted the loans and advance as indicated above in the nature of loan
which are repayable on demand. During the year the Company has not demanded such loans.
Since there were no stipulations regarding payment of principal and the same is also repayable
on demand, the regularity of repayment could not be commented upon.
d. According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, in respect of loans and advance in the nature of loan provided by the Company,
there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date as the
Company has not demanded such loans and advance in nature of loan, as the same has been
repayable on demand.
e. None of the loans granted and advances in the nature of loans by the Company have fallen
due during the year as the Company has not demanded such loans and advance in nature of
loan repayable on demand.
Above mentioned loans and advance in the nature of loan in clause (i) (a) granted by the \
Company are repayable on demand "n\

~.  Based on management representation and independent apinion produced before us, the company
has generally complied with the provisions of Section 185 of the act with respect to the
made.

202, "Kalinga Arcade”. 2nd Floor, Cpp Bank of India, Ph. - OT12-25502 16, 2555005
Shankar Nagar Squara, NAGPUR-10 E-mail  proshantbanthis@gmall com




BSVM AND ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

The company being engaged in prowviding infrastructure facilities and in pursuance to subsection
11 of section 186 of the companies act , the provisions of section 186 of the companies act is not
applicable to the company , except for subsection 1 related to investments , which the company
has duly complied with

v. The company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

vl. According to information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, on the basis of records
produced to us , prima facie , the cost records and accounts prescribed by the central government
under section 148 (1) of the act have been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vil. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues of provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, Goods and service tax
and other material statutory dues during the year with the appropriate authorities.

As on 31st March 2023, there are no such material undisputed dues payable for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Goods and
Service Tax, Value Added Tax and Any Other Taxes which have not been deposited as on March
31, 2023 on account of disputes are given below:-

i,

MName of Nature of Forum where Period to  Amount
Statute Dues Dispute is | which Involved
Pending Amount (Rs. crore)
Relates
Income Tax Commisioner
Act Income Tax Appeals AY 2015-16 4.52
Income Tax Commisioner
Ack Income Tax . Is AY 2016-17 6.76
Income Tax -
Income Tax Processing AY 2021-22 0.95
Act
Centre
Service Tax ; Adjudicating Till June
Act Service Tax | i 2017 s

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company does
not have any transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax1961 (43 of
1961).

Ph. - 0712-2550210. 2655005
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. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there were no
material defaults in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon
to any lender during the year.

{b) The company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender, hence this clause is not applicable.

(c) The company has not oblained any term loan during the year, hence this clause s not
applicable.

(d) The company has not raised any short-term fund; hence this clause is not applicable;

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures; hence this clause is not applicable.

{f} The company has not raised company has raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies; hence this clause is not
applicable.

x. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{Including debt instruments) during the year.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year; hence this clause
is not applicable.

xi. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company
or an the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course
of our audit

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government. hence this clause is not applicable.

(¢} We have neither come across any instance of whistle-blower complaints nor have we been
informed of such case by the management

xil. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiil. According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sects
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. (a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.
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xix,

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered during the
audit

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

{a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

(b) The Company is not has conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities;
hence this clause is not applicable.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India; hence this clause is not applicable.

{d) The Company does not have any CIC.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year. Accordingly, clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviil)
of the Order is not applicable

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial labilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantes nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project
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in our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing project
Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable

xwxi.  In our opinion, the financial statements are standalone; Hence, paragraph 300d) is not applicable.
FOR BSVM and Associates

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 123161W

M. No. 118792

Place: Nagpur
Date: 30/08/2023

202, *Kalinga Arcade”. 2nd Floor, Opp. Bank of India, Ph. - 0712-2850216, 2555005
Shankar Nagar Square, NAGPUR-10 E-mail | prashanfbanthinggmai com



OX BSVM AND ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS Tolls Private
Limited (“the Company’) as of 31st March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone IND AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibllity for Internal Finandal Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating affectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intermal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls systern over financial reporting.
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Meaning of internal Financial Controls over Finandal Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting Is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial over
financial reporting included those policies and procedures that ( 1) pertain to the maintenance of record that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditure of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorization of the Management and directors of the
Company; and (3] provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
bacome inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
315t March 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal cantrol stated in the guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

FOR BSVM and Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 123161W
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AYODHYA GORAKHPUR SMS TOLLS PRIVATE UMITED

[lhl.lnu- Sheet as at 31 March 2023
P Ag at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March
i * Lakhe ¢lakhe
ASSETS:
Non-current assets
Property, Fant and Equipment 3 03 57.13
Other Intangible Assets E . 5,732.65
Financial Assets
I} Irvestments s 11.763.53 11,768.65
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) B - .
Other Mon-current assets 7 . 0.32
Total Non-Current Assets 11,266.55 17,558.74
Current Assets
Inventories B - BE.5E
Financial Assets
i Trade Aecevables L ] 0.08 2787
ii} Cash and Cash Equivalent 10 .20 17187.01
iil) Loans 11 1.356.38 2834.69
1ﬂth!r Currant Assets 12 2,630.41 2,504.75
Total Current Assets 3,996.05 7.342.88
Total Assety 15,262 61 Im
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:
Equity
Equity Share Capital 13 1,600.00 1,600.00
Other Equity 14 7,538 .68 7.518.89
otal Equity 9,138.658 9,118.49
Uabilities
Man-current liabillties
Financial Liabilites;
Provisions 15 - 5,499.56
Lease Liabiiities 15 - B6.72
Total Non-Current Llabilities - 5.506.29
Current Liabilitles
Financlal Liabilithes
Borrowings 17 - laigar
Trade Payables 18
Total outstanding dues of micro and small entarprises - .
Total sutstanding dues of creditars ather than micro. 3910 2,516.01
and small enterprises
Other Financial Liahilities 15 6,064,01 6,001 54
Provisions [ 20.83 235.38
Other Current Ligbikties 21 - 107.44
Total Current Liabilities 6,123.93 10,275.54
Tatal Liabilities 6,123.93 15,783.13
Total Equity and Liabilities 15,262.61 ___24,501.62 |
Slgnificant Accounting Policies 1
Naties to Financial Statements 3-44
The nates referred to above f6rm an integral part of the standalane financial statemants
As Per Our report of even date attached
For BSVM and Associatos Far and On Behalf of the Board of Directars
Chartered Accountants | Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS Tolls Private Limited

Firm Reg, No. 123161W

lip Bhawarlal Surana Akshay Abhay Sanchati
Managing Director Director
i DiN: O0953495 DMN:O7564977

CA Prateek Vaidya " L )
Partner W W
Membership No. 118792
Date: 30th August 2023 Badrish MNaklak Ankita Hande
Fiace: Nagpus (‘NYD‘ 3:?511 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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AYODHYA GORAKHPUR SMS TOLLS PRIVATE LIMITED
mwmmmhmwmummm

For the Perind ended 31 For the Period ended 31
Particulars Motes March 2023 March 2022
¥ Lakhs ¥ Lakhs
L |Revenus from Operations n 11,981 84 i1.981.82
Il jOther income n 19554 197 30
V. [Total income: 1217738 2317911
Y. |Empendas
Material Consumed P L 31119 635.04
aling B Maintenance Expermes 25 365151 620,78
Empicyes Benefits Expense 26 BiR1S 1,120 87
Depreciation 2nd Amortization Expense ik4 5.900.91 16,358.76
Finance Costy i 354 67 1,095.78
Other Expenzes
) Enchanige Fluctuations 284 505,12 149707
(&) Othar Expanpes 288 4700 &81.73
Total Experaa (IV) 1210834 211503
W1, |Profit Before Tax (H1-1V] 9,04 1.004.08
VIL {income Tax Expense
{1} Current Tax . 1BG9.70
2] Beferred Tax - 2204
1) Mat Credit Entitharment 48.86 [174.75)
Total Tax Expense 4586 36.50
Wiil. |Profit From Continuing Operstions [V.-Vi) . .18 1.027.10
[¥. |Other Comprehemive Income,[Loss) from Contlnued Operations
(1) tems that will net be reclasalied 1o profit or Inss 19 - (ouEs)
1) Incame Tas retuting to abowe items that wilt nol be classfied to profie & ices, - +
Other Comprehensive income/|[Loss) from continued operations (Net of Tax) - [0.88)
H. |Total Comprehentive Income/(Lost) from continued oparathons (Vi1 « Vi)
mmummmmmmmm 0.18 1.026.22
Basic and Diluted Esrnings per share [} 0.13 [ 1]
Sagnificant Accaounting Poliehis 1
heates wo Financial Statements 344
That noted rederred to above form an integral part of the sandalone finapcial siatements
A Per Cur regort of even date sttached For and On Bahalf of the Bosrd of Directzes
Far B5VM and Associates Ayodhys Gorakhpur SMS Tolls Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. Mo, 123161 W

Pilip Bhawarisl Sursne Adeshivy Abh sy Sancretl
Managing Director Dérector
DN DD9R 355 DINO7564977
ChPraiek vy : W
Partiar W
Membership Mo, 118792 Badeish Mkl Ankits Hande
Diste: 30th August 2023 Chief Financial OMicer Company Secretary

Flace: Nagpur



AYODHYA GORAKHPUR SMS TOLLS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes In equity for the period ended 315t March 2023

The notes referrsd to above form an Integral part of the standalone flndncal statements

As Par Dur report of aven date attached
For BSVM and Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. Mo, 123161W

™,

CA Pratess Vaidya
Fartner

Membership No. 118792
Duate: 30th August 2023
Place: Nagpiur

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL Amount {in % Lakhs|
Balance as at 1 April 2021 1,600.00

Changes in =quity share capital durin;thr WERT .
||s.mnu a4 at 31 March 2022 1,600.00

Cha in share ca durm the year .

Bsfance as at 31 March 2023 1,600.00

B. OTHER EQUITY T Lokhs

Attributabie to the equity holders
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Items of OCI Total Equity
Retalned Earmings FVTOCH Resarve

Ad at 1 April 2021 6,563 15 {70.88) 649223
Profit for the period 1,027.10 . 102710
Cther comprehensive income - {o.Eg)) (28]
Total comprehensive Income 7.500.25 (#1785} 751849
Less: Bonus Shares issued during the year - . .
Lissa: Intesim Dividend Paid - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 7,590.25 (TL.76) 7.518.49
Asat 1 Aprll 2022 7505025 {TLTB6) 751849
Prafit for the period 2018 - 2018
Other comprehensive Incames - - =
Total comprehensive Income 761043 {7L7E) 7153068
Less: Bonus Shares issued during the year - - -
Less Interim Dividend Paid - - -
Balance a5 at 31 March 2023 7.610.43 {71.76) 7,538.68
Significant Accounting Policles 2

Notes to Financial S1atements 3-44

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors
Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS Tolls Private Limited

Dilip Bhawarlal Surana Akshay Abhay Sancheti
Managing Director Director
DIN; DD953495 DIN-O7564977
; o YA
m Arnkita Hende
Chief Financial Officer Company Secratary




AVODHYA GORAKHPUR SMS TOLLS PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 315t March 2023

P Laihs

P > e,
CASH FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVTIES:

Profit | {los) belare tax 69,04 1.064.08
Adjusmants for:

Eepreciation and Amortization Expense id 5,900.91 15,358 76
Financa Chargee 27 X719 B33.55
Fair Vabustion Less/{Prefit) on Equity Instruments 28 505.12 148107
Flwod Astets Writton Off E+ 15.90

Profit on saf of Fved Assets 3 [5.37) -
Interedt Income b | {180.88) {182.18)
Operating cash profit [ (loss] before working cagital changes 6,601.91 15,560.78
Adjustments for changes in working capital

{increase) /decrease in Trade recasvabie 7 14819
{Increase) fdecrease in loventary B3.56 {7710
[Increasa) idecrasss in Other Financial Aigaty 032 023
|Increase} fdecrede in Current Financlal Assets- Others 160 88
{Increasa) f decrease i Other Current Assets (25.66) {421.68)
Increase [ (decresse) in Trade Payabies - Short Term [2.476.92) 1Bas3
Increase / (decrassa] in Current Financisl Liabibies - Othass (204,33} 15.84
Increase [ [decrrane) in Short Term Provision [214.58] {285 B4)
increace / (decrezss) in Other Current Lizhilities (107.44)

Increase [ {decresie) inLong Term Provision |5,499 58} {14,807 28)
tncrease [ [decresa) in thase Ligbilting 1572 [18.54)
Cash generated | (used) from operstions (1,816.59] 449161
Incoma Tax Paid 48,86 14.94
Net cash inflaw / (outflow| from cperating activities (Al (1.885.45) 447666
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Propesty, Plant & Equipment including CWIF, Intangibiz assers (141.39) {1.637.25)
Sale of Fived Assets 1569 -
Loaps and Advance made - Given (1,23833) (532.13)
Loans and Advance made - Repayment Receivod 2,716.64 54111
interest Reehod 16088 18818
Met cash inflow / [sutflow) from Investing activities 1] 1,534.50 (1.340.14)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Procesds from bormowings 9,668.11 15.090.98
Mepayment of borrawings {10,817.78) (47,520.50)
Processing Feas paid - 67 ES
Interest paid b {297.19) (B33.55)
Nat cash inflow / [outflow) from financing activities ic) 11,445.86) (3.195.27)
Net Increase f (decrease] in cash and eash aquivalents  |A+B+C) 1,777.81) (158.75)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 178701 194576
Cash snd cash equivalents at the end of the year 920 178701

N



Cash and Cash equivalents inchudes as at 31 March, 2023

Farticulars 315t March 2023 315t March 2022
Cashon hand i 078 11.B4
Balance with banks In curfest accounts 10 B.24 128.45
Balance with banks In deposi® sccounts 1 .18 1.646.72

Cash and cash egquivalents at the end of the year 9.4g 1,787.01

Moted:

1] The cash fiow statemant has been prepared under Indirect Method ar per Accounding Standard (ind A5] - 7 *Statemant of Cash Flows",
2] Al figores in bracket are outflow.

3) Direct tanes pasd are treated as 2esing from operating activities and are not bifurcaled betwean investing and Mirancing activities:

4] Previous year figures have beon recast /| restated wherever noceksncy,

Maovement in Borrowings
Particulars 1 March 2022 Cush Flows 31 March 2023

Long Term Borrowings

Shiort Tarm Borrowings {refer note no 193 \ ETag.5a 166 T9 601673
Total Borrowings 5,740,904 266,79 6,016.73

A5 Per Our repor of ewmn dat=

For BSWM and Associatey
Chartered Accountants For and On Behatl of the Board of Directors
Firm Regn. 123181W Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS Tolls Private Limited
g Et'mt-arhliuﬁm .ﬁ.tsl‘la'y'!ﬂ'la?ﬁimﬂ!ﬁ
Managig Director
DAN-0053405 DIN-D?EEIB??
CA Prataek Vadiya .
M No 118792 Badriah Naklak lnh-‘m Hlﬂdl'
Date: 30th Auguer 2021 Chief Firancial Officer

Place: Nagpur



Notes to Financial Statements as at 315t March, 2023

Hote § - FROPLRTY, FLANT AND EQUIPMENT - AS A% 515t March 2023

Praparty, Plent snd oulpraent - Aa Ak Tisi March 2055 In ¥ Lakhs
Gross Biack {Al Comt) _ Accumulated Depeeciation NIT ILOCK
Addithon | Pedictions/ | &s 8t March 31, Deductiong | | Az at Marth 31, AsatMarch 11 | AsatMarch3L,
Particulars s i Al 01, F032 Adjuntments Adjustrants 2023 At April 01 3027] Adfjisstnonts Charge fod the yuar 2033 pLre] 02z

Tangible Assets
Oifice Equipment 4557 @10 4547 - 175 4119 L44 - - 461
Computer & Printer LLET - 752 ad 1111 748 011 agf o1 071
Furmiture & Maturs 1480 . 1480 0.00 1312 1349 237 - - 168
Machmery & Teals 10857 o 10366 L% Ba0D A5.52 502 48 113 Fil
Vehicles £1140 (PR 3139 1766 1704 005 2976 157 £78
Tall Collection System J01ER - 0z s 18140 EEE T ] a9 - M.33

Total 55625 0.50 | $55.40 [TET B2 5217 D7 BL12 1] §7.12
The Project has been sucorsefilly eompleted on 02nd October 20032 and ol the stsets other than shoven in Mot Black ahove kaua basn sold/diipoied off.
Preperty, Piant and Equipsent - &5 At 315t March 2023 Im ¥ Lkiha

Gerosin Mlesch (AR Cout) Acoumutated Depregation NET BLOCE
Additian [ Peductions [ | As ar March 31, Daduetions As w1 March 31, As a1 Masch 51, s i Mlarch kI,
Parthculars As ot April 0L, 7021 Adpresmants Adlustmeils 20 ArAtApl 0L 2021 Adjustments | Charge for the year 2022 2023 a1

Tanglble Amety
Office fepment 4393 LES - AS3T .72 . 1 s a1 a6
Compistes & Prsvtar 11m . - 1183 1061 030 1111 (1) S 102
Fumitisre & Fletive 14 B0 14 5 1149 (1] 1313 168 13
bahinery & Tools LR L] 1062 10487 7933 - 55 .59 FEL ;) 1503
Vehirles 113.40 - 11380 10742 oM 10765 %[} 198
Toll Collection Syitem Wa.a7 on 018 16415 a3 IEL43 0.3 A b

Total Sl3.04 [TETY - 59525 LEET] - 2E.08 539,12 57.12 70.00




Note 4 - Intangible Assets - as st 31st March 2023

Intangible Assets - ae st 3158 March 2023 in ® Lakhs
Grows Mock (At Cost) Accumulsted Depreciation Net Bleck
Particulan As at April 01, Addition [ Deductions [ As st April 01, Deducthons / Charge for tha As at March 31, A at March 11,
2022 Adjustments | Adjustments | A * March 31, 2023 2022 Adjustments pesiod 2003 A5 I A 31, 022
|intangible Assets:
Toll Collection Rights 99.9%79.78 146 65 1,00.126.43 84,252, 89 100, 176.43 5E71.54 5,726.88
Hight o use Asset 58.49 - SR.49 - 52,72 52.72 - 577
Tatal 1,00,038.26 146,65 1,00, 18452 94,305.61 1,00,179.15 5 871.54 . 573265
The Project has been successfully completed on 02nd October 2022 and all the intangible aszets have baen written/ diposed off,
Intangible Assets - as ot 315t March 2022 in ¥ Lakhs
Grows Block (At Cost) Accumulated Depreclation Net Block
Particulars As at April 01, Addition | Deductions [/ As w1 Apiil 01, Deductions / Charge for the As sl March 11, As at March 11,
2021 Adjusiments | Adjustments | A% March 31, 2022 2021 Adjustments pesiad 2012 SN 1, e 2021
Intangible Assety:
Toll Collection Hights 98,355.71 162407 99.579.78 7793752 16,315,368 94,251,859 572688 2041819
Asghit 1o Lise Asset SE.S1 - {€.02) LR 3542 1730 5471 577 B3y
Total 98,414.22 1,624,07 [0.02) 1,00,038.26 77,972.93 - 16,332.68 #4,305.51 5.732.65 20,4412




2.1

2.2

2.3

a)

b)

e

AYODHYA GORAKHPUR SMS TOLLS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2023:

Corporate information

AYODHYA GORAKHPUR SMS TOLLS PRIVATE LIMITED is a Private Limited Company domiciled In indis and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. NHAI has granted a contract to the Company to Cperate, Maintain and Transfer ("OMT') of
National Mighway No. 28 {'NH 28°) under the Concession Agreement dated Sth March 2013 for a period of 9 years. The sald project shall
include construction on the site of the project faciities, operation and maintenance of the praject highway and performance and
fulfiliment of all other obligations incidental thereto. The Project has been succesfully completed on O2nd October 2022 and the stretch
has baen handed over to NHAL

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation:

These financlal statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 along with comparative financial infarmation for the year
Mareh 31, 2022 have been prepared In accordance with the indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the “Ind AS') 25
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affalrs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ['Act’) read with Rule 3 of the Comparies
(Indian Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015 a3 amendead and other relevant provistons of the Act.

Historical Cast Convention:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and llabilities that are
measured at fair value;

Current non-current classification:

All zssets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncusrent a5 per the Company's operating cycle and other criteria set out In
thee Schedule Nl to the Companles Act, 2013, Based on the nature of business and the time between the scquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained Its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current - noncurrent classification of assets and liabilitles,

Functional and presentation currency:
These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency, All amounts have
been rounded 1o the nearest rupees, unless otherwise indicated.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of estimates and assumptions for some ltems, which
might have an effect on their recognition and measurement in the (standaione) balance sheet and {standalone) statement of profit and
loss. The actiual amounts realised may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and assurmptions are required in particular for:

Property, plant and equipment

Determination of the estimated usefid lives of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be
capitallzed. Useful lives of tangible assets are basad an the life prescribed in Schedule It of the Companies Act, 2013. In cases, where the
useful lives are different from thut preseribed In Schedyle 11, they are based an technlcal advice, taking into account the nature of the
asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technologlcal
changes, manufacturers’ warranties and malntenance support. Assumptions also need to be made, when the Company assesses,
whether an asset may be capitalised and which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised,

Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are nat ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising of direct costs,

related Incidental expenses and attributable interest If any,
Recognition of deferred tax assets ¢

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temparary differénces to the extent that it Is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temparary difference can be wtiflsed. The management ks reasonably certain that taxable profits
will be available to absorb carried forward losses while recognising deferred tax assels.

Recognition and measurement of other provisions ;

The recognition and measurement of ather provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on
past experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore
vary from the figure included in other provisions.

Discounting of long-term financial instruments :

All financial instruments are required to be measured at fair value on [nitial recognition. In case of financial instruments which are
required to subsequently measured at amortised cost, interest |8 acerued uslng the effective Interest method,

Overiay Expenditure:

As per the concession Agreemnent entered with NHAI, the company has a contractual obligation to carry out resurfacing foverlay of the
roads under concession.Provision for overlay in respect of toll roads maintained by the company under service concession
arrangements and classified as intangible assets represents contractual obligations 1o restore an infrastructure facilities to a specified
level of serviceability In respect of such asset and hence has recognised the same as an upgrade sarvice and as Intangible asset | the
Biming and amount of such asset are estimated and recognised on a discounted basis. Estimate of the provision s measured using a
number of factors such as contractual requirements stechnology , expert opinions and expected price level , Because actual cash fiows
can differ from estimates due 1o changes In laws regualtions, public expectation ,technology ,prices and conditions and can take place
many years in the future , the carrying amounts of provisions s reveiwed at regular intervals and adjusted to take account of such
changes,

%,
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Measurement of fair values:

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for financial instruments. When measuring
the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liabllity, fair values are tategorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on
the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (l.e. derived from prices).

Lavel 3. inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

The Company recognises transfars due to change between levels of the fair value higrarchy at the end of the reporting period,

Significant accounting policies

Property, Plant, Equipment

a) Recognition and measurament

Property, Plant, Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost compeises the purchase
price, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and the initial estimate of the easts of dismantling and remaving the ftem and restoring the site on
which It is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs. efther when the item is acquired or as a comequence of having used the
item during & particular period for purposes other than to produce Inventorkes during that perlod.

Income and expenses refated to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to the location and conditian necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, are recognised in profit or loss,

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate Items
[major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment s
recoanised In profit or loss.

b) Depreciation / amortization

Depreciation Is provided on a pro-rata basis on the written down value over the estimated useful life of the assets.

Depreciation on addition/deletion of flxed assets during the year i provided an pro-rata basis from / to the date of addition/ deletion,
Fixed assets costing up to 5,000 individually are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

Useful life of the asset s taken, as specified in Schedule il of the Companies Act, 2013"

] Subsequent Expenditure:

Subsequent Expenditure is capitalised only If it is probable that the future economic berefits assoclated with the expenditure will flow
to the Company.

d) Impairment of fixed assets:

The carrying values of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if any indication of impairment exists,

If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess amount,
The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit @nd Loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in
which case any impairment loss of the revalued asset s treated as a revaiuation decrease to the extent a revaluation reserve is available
for that asset.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the nat selling price and their value in use. Value in use |s arrived at by discounting the future
cash flows to their present value based on an approgrlate discount factor,

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset {other than a revalued asset] in earlier acoounting periods no
longer exists or may have decreased, such Reversal of Impalrment loss is recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss, 1o the extent
the amount was previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Los. In case of revalued assets such Reversal is not recognised,

Intangible assets

Toll Collection Rights

a) Recognition and Measurement

Toll collectian rights are stated at cost, less accumulatad amortisation and impairment losses, Costincludes:

Contractus! Upfront / monthly fartnightly payments towards acquisition

b) Contractual obligation to restore the infrastructure to a specified level of serviceabiity

In case of concesslon arrangements under of such costs are estimated and racognised on a discounted basis by charging costs to
revenue on the units of usage method l.e. on the number of vehicies expected to use the project facility , over the period at the end of
which the overlay Is estimated to be carried gut based on technical evalution by indapendent experts.

c) Amortisation of intangible ssset under SCA

The intangible rights realtion to infrastructure assets, which are recognised in the form of rights to charge users of the Infrastructure
35els are amartired by taking proportionate of actual traffic count for the period over total projected traffic count from project to cost
of intanglble assets Le. proportionate of actual tratfic count fram the intangible assets expected to eamned over the balance concession
perlod a5 estimated by management

d} Accounting of receivable and payable from / to the grantor

When the arrangements has a contractual obligation to pay cash or other finanacial asset to the grantor speifiacally towards the
concession arrangements during the construction period or otherwise , such unconditional obligation 1o pay cash is recorded as
financial llabilities on the date when the obligation arises accordance: with Ind AS 109 Einancial Instruments at amortise cost , with a
correspancing recognisation of an Intangible asset. Thereafter » the unwinding of interest, recognised based of effective Interest rate
methed . also becomes eligible for capitalisation on qua lifylng 2ssets being related to Intangible Assets.

™



i)

)

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are Interest and other costs related to borrowing that the Company Incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds
and ls measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing. Borrowing costs include interest
costs measured at Effective interest Rate (EIR) and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are
regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Ancillary borrowing costs are amortised over the tenure of the loan.

Bomowing costs that are attributable to aoguisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized at 3 part of cost of such assets till
the time the asset s ready for its intended use. A qualifying assets is the one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get
ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are recorded as an expense In the year in which they are incurred. Ancillary borrowing
Costs are amortised over the tenure of the loan,

Financial Instruments

A financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financlal asset of one entity and a financlal liability or equity instrument of
anather entity.

A Financiai assets

Classification

The Company shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, falr value through other comprebiensive incame
or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash Mow
characteristics of the financial asset.

Imitial recognition and meaasurement:

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party 1o a contract that gives rise to  financial asset of one entity or
equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets are initially measured at falr value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets , other than those designated as fair value through profit or loss [FYTPL), are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets , as appropriate, on initlal recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immed|ately in statement of profit and loss.

Debt Instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amaortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

1) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest [SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost |5 calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
Integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation Is included In finance income in the profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are
recomnised |n the orofit or lods. This category generally applies to trade and other recelvables,

Debt instruments at FVWOCI

A 'debt instrument’ is measured a1 the Falr value through other comprehensive income{FVOCH) if both the following conditions are met:
) The asset is held within a business model whose objective ks achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets,, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

For assets classified as subsequently measured st FVOCI, interest revenue, expected credit losses, and foreign exchange gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Other gains and losses on remeasurement 1o fair value are recognised in OCL. On derecognition, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC| is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL)

Any debit instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as st amortized cost ar 25 FVOCI, Is classified as at FVTPL
In addition, the group may elect to classify a debt instrument, which atherwise meets amortized cost or FVOCT criterla, as at FVTPL
Debt Instruments included within the FVTPL category 2re measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Equity Instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The Company measures its equity investment other than in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates at fair value through profit and
loss. However whers the Company's management makes an lrrevocable cheice on inithal recognition to present fair value gains and
losses on specific equity investments in other comprehensive income {Currently no such choice made), there is no subsequent
reclassification, on sale or otherwise, of fair value gains and losses to the Statement of Prafit and Loss.



wi)

wil)

will)

Deracognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of 3 group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
{l.e. ramoved from the Company’s balance shest) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have espired, or

« The Compnay has transferred its rights mrammcuhﬂuwsimmtheammhumum:danahlipﬂmtnmﬁtmnﬁl
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and sither

() the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entersd into & pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retsined the risks snd rewards of owners hip. When it has nefther transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. (n that case, the Company alwo recognises an associated liability
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower af the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be reauired to regay.

Impairment of financial assets:

Financial assets of the Company comprise of trade receivable and other receivables consisting of debt instruments eg., loans, debt
securities, deposits, and bank balance. Trade and other receivables ate recognised Initislly at falr value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. An Impairment loss for trade and other receivables is
established when thers is objective evidence that the Company will not ba abls to collsct all amounts dus according to the original
terms of the receivables. Impairment losses if any, are recognised in profit or loss for the period.”

B. Financial liabilities i
Financlal instruments with a contractual obligation to defiver cash or another financial sssets Is recognised as financlal lability by the
Company.

Classification
The Company classifies all financial llabilitles as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial lisbilities at fair valye
through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are llabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

Initial recognition and measurement

Derecognition

A financial liability s derecognised when the obligation under the liability iz discharged or cancelled or expires. ‘When an existing
finaneial Uability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Hability are
substantislly modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the racognition of a
new fability.

The difference In the respective casrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial aasets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount s reparted in the consolidated balance shest If there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and sattle
the labdlities simultaneousiy.

Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property of, If lower, the
presznt value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings
ar other financial llabilities as appropriste. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
lablliry for each period.

Leases In which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the group as lessee are classified as

operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives recelved from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on
a straiehil-line basis aver the nerad of the lrase

Trade Recelvables
Trade receivables are recognised Initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less, which are subjset to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.



i Prowisions, contingent labilities and contingent assets

%)

)

A provision s recognized when the Company has a present obligation a5 a result of past events and it Is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required 1o settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent llabllities are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statemnents,

Contingent assets are not recognized In the financial statements.

Further, lang term provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost, A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present valug of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of tontinuing with the contract. Before a provision Is established, the
Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company, the revenue can be reliably
measured and no significant uncertainty as to the measurability and collectability exists. The Company derives revenues primarily from
toll collection and construction contracis of extra work awarded by MNHAL,

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company sdopted IND AS 115 . Revenue from Contracts with Customers,

Revenue is recognized on following basis -

Toll collection
Revenue from tall collection is recognised on actual collections of toll and in case of comtractual terms with certain customers the same
i recognised on an acerual basls.

Revenue from Construction Contracts

Contract revenue and contract cost associated with the construction, where performace obligations are satisfied over time and where
there i no uncertiinty as to measurement or coliectability of consideration, are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively as per
percentage of completion method of the projects at the balance sheet date. When there B uncertainty as to the measurement or
ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Efforts or costs expended have been used 1o
measure progreds towards completion as there ls a direct relationship between input and productivity. Maintenance revenue is
recognized ratably over the tarm of the uniderlying maintenance arrangement.

If total cost is estimatad to excesd total contract revenue. the Company provides for foresesable loss. Contract revenue sarned in
excess of billing has been refiected as unbilled revenue and billing In excess of contract revenue has been refiected as unesmed
revenus.

Other income:

- Interest income Is recognized on a time propartion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the effective rate of fnterest.
Where the loan Is repayable on demand, interest income has been recognized on the basis of actual interest charged.

- Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company's right to receive payment (s established,

Revenue (Rs Lakhs) for the years ended March 31,2023 and March 31,2022 are 83 follows:-

Year anded Year ended
Particulay 3ist March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Revenue from Tall Collection 11,793.21 22.946.24
Revenue from Construction 188,64 35.58
TOTAL REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 11,581.84 212,981.82

Retirement and other employee benefits

a) Short term employes benefits

All employee benefits payable whally within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
benefits. Benafits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expecied cost of ex-gratiz are recognized In the period in which the employes
renders the related service. A fiability is recoghised for the amount expected to be paid I the Company has a present legal or

constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the abligation can be estimated
reflably,

b) Pest Employment Employes Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees comprise payments to government provident funds, gratuity fund and Employees State Insurance.

Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contribution to dafined contributions plans such as Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance and Maharashtra Labour
Weifare Fund are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass in the year when the contributions to the respective funds are dus,
There are no other obligations other than the contribrution payable to the respective Funds,
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Defined benefit plans
Gratuity llability is defined benefit abligation. The Company’s nat obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme Is calculated by

estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned In return for their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined
based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes each period of sarvice
as glving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitiement and measures sach unit separately to build up the final obligation. The
obligation Is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash fiows. The discount rates used for determining the present
value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet
date, Remeasurement of the net defined benefit llability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
interest) and the effect of the assat celling (if any, excluding |nterest), are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive income. Net
Interest expende (Income) on the net defined labllity (assets) |3 computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net
defined lability (asset], to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking Into account any changes as a
result of contribution and benefit payments during the year, Net interest axpense and other axpenses related to defined banefit plans
are recognised in Statemant of Profit and Loss.

Income Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax Curment income tax |5 measured 2t the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with income Tax Act, 1961, Deferred income tax reflects the impact of current year timing differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes and
Reversal of timing differences of earller years,

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for unusad tax losses; unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it s probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced To the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when
the probabilty of future taxable profits improves Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which they can be used.

Deferred tax assets and Nabilities are offset only If:

a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax labilities; and

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation autherity on the same
tanable entity

Deferred tax asset / labilities In respect of on temporary differences which originate and reverse during the tax holiday period are not
recognised, Deferred tax assets / habdlities in respect of temporary differences that originate during the tax holiday period but reverse
after the tax holiday period are recognised. The tax effect is caleulated on the accumulated timing differances at the year-end based on

the tax rates and laws enacted or substantially enacted on the balance sheet date.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT] paid in accordance with the tax laws, which given future economic benefits in the form of adjustment ta

future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is comvinging evidence that the entity will pay normal income taw
Accardingly, MAT is recognised as an asset when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the
entity.

Earnings Per Share

a} Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per thare i3 colculated by dividing:

- the profit attributable to owners of the Company

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financlal year.

b) Diluted =arnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take Into account:

-the after Income tax effect of Interest and other financing costs assoclated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

-the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Inventories

Construction materials, components, stores, spares and tools

They are valeed at lower of cost and net reallsable value. Cost is determined on first In first out basis and comprise all cost of purchase,
duties, taxes (other than those subseguently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the lnventary to
their present location and condition.

Work-in-progress and finished goods

They are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of overheads based
on normal operating capacity. Cost s determined on welghted average basis. Net realisable value s the estimated contract price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to complete the contract.

Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost except in cases
where matenal prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed theis net realisable value.
Incase if any payment for inventory is deferred beyond normal credit terms then cost is determined by discounting the future cash flows
at an interest rate determined with reference to market rates: The difference betwean the total cost and the desmed cost in such cases
are recognised as interest expense aver the period of financing under the effective interest method.
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Disclosure on Ind-AS 116 Leases

Effective April 1, 2019, the Group has adapted Ind AS 116 “Leasec', applied to all Ieases contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the
modified retrospective methad along with the transition option to recognise Right-To-Use asset {ROU) at an amount equal to the lease
liatility. "

In Statement of profit and loss for the current year, the nature of expenses in respect of operating leases has changed from lease rent in
previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-to-use asset and finance costs for interest accrued on lease llability,

The effect of depreciation and interest related to Right Of Use Asset and Lease Liability are reflected In the Statement of Profit and Loss
under the heading “Other Expenses” under Note No 28,

Recent Amendments

Ministry of Corporate Atfalrs (MCA), notified new standards or amendments 1o the ex|sting standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standarde) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Aules, 2023 applicable from April 01, 2023 to the Copany as below:

Ind AS 101 : First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards

Ind AS 102 : Share-based Payments

Ind AS 103 : Business Combinations

Ind AS 107 : Financial Instruments Disclasures

Ind AS 109 : Financial Instruments

Ind A5 115 : Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 1 : Presentation of Financial Statements

ind AS 8 : Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Ind A5 12 : Income Tax '

Ined AS 34 : Interlm Financlal Reporting

The Company does not expect these amendments to have any signfficant impact on the Financial Statements.



st Ag at

15t March 2023 Jlst March 2022
shd £ 0L 1AL Ll EL =ty LT RN ks - R UR

Shares of Dhan| Services
Mo - 34,10.944 thares of face Value Rs 10/ nach)

Unguoted
58,845,540 Equity Shares of Spark sl and Parking Private Lid
Ifa - 58,45.540 shares of Face Vilue As 30/ eacn)

nvetments in Preterence Shaven (fully peid-yp}
Unguoted
1,00.00.000 Preference thares of Spark Mall and Parking Pyt Lid

§74.81 b e d

596892 586851

500000 502000

Grand Total

11.353.53

* DFLANT SERVICES

1} Tha company purchased 14,3094/, nurmber of shafes during the FY 20-21 at total valuation of s 21,07,94.986/-. Average purchase price per
share i 163.57/-. &5 on 3151 March 2071 the vakee per share has increased o Ry 168,10/, Mence. fair vahee of shares ax on 315t March 2008
weid Ky 33, 7L 70,686, -,

2] Az on F1st March 2027 the valoe par shane has decreased to fiy 62 35/ Hence, fulr vadue of shared 51 60 316 March 2033 was A
079,72 354/

3} &5 on Fist March 7033 the value per share fap decreated 1o Rs 76.55/-. Hance, Bair value of shares #a o0 3141 March 2023 wind By
174,60, 563/,

* Spark Mall And Parking Private Limited

1) The Company has purchased S8.85 540 numbar of aquity Shares of Spark Mall & Parking Private Lirmited from SMS Limited | Holding
Company) for conideration smounting to Rs.58,68,02 216/~

4] Thie nbovie iguity shares have been plecigied with the indla bulls Housing Finance Ltd againat lsn taken by Spark Mail & Parking Pyt Lid. fior
moviding security to Irdia bulk Housing Fisance Ltd w.e.f 04.04.20320,

1) invesereit i Preference Shares of Soark Weall and Paring Private Limlted have bees sald by the Company wide Baard Approved an 15th Apnil
2033 1o Maharashirs Emarg Power Lissited for 8 consideration fo Rs 50,20.00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crores Twenty Lakhs oniy) received in 2

tranches an Jdth & 25tk &pril 2033,

Note &  Deferred Tan Assets

1§ Movement of Deferred Tax Assets-
Particwlan Az at As ot
311t March 1023 st March 2022
Opening balance of deferred taw assst - 12.08
Charged [ Credited va prafit or logs (22,04}
Clesing balsnce of deferred tax assest =
 ——
i) Current Income Tax Expense:
Particulan As at Asat
sk March 2023 Alst March 20232
Curvrent Year Tas Expense [Nt of MAT Credm) 48 .84 1454
Dattarred Tax Exponis - 2204
mumnmhMMtﬁmmhu T}
mn-—dmﬂwmmm“wimum
Particulars AL st A5 at
3152 March 2003 st March 2022
Prafit  {kass] before tax 404 1.064.08
Applicabls Tas Rate ITEIN T8RN
Tau st Statutory Rate 1931 6.0
Enpanze not deductible in determining taxabie profits 13291 35434
Deduction under sectian B0 (11171} [635.43)
Chhers H46 2204
Tan Expense for the year AR8BE 36.98




Mete 7

Note 8

Mote 8

Note 10

The esmpany has not exercised the opthan permitted under section 3158A4 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the
Tazatlon Laws |Amendment) Ordinance, 2015 as company is under tax hobiday period as per section 8084 of the Income Tax Act,

1961

Son-Lurrent Financdal Assets - Others

Purlicular

Az at
Jist March 2023

By ot
31st March 2022

Security Deposits
{Unsecured, considered good |

032

Geand Tatal

Current Ausets - [wentories

Particulars

Aa mt
315t March 2023

Aaat
31st March 2003

Baw Matorlal

Work in Progress
Wi - Balling and Sgnboard

Grand Total

LIS

7741

B8 56

Current Financial Axsets - Trade Rocerables

Partlcutars

F1st March 2021

As it
3ist March 2033

Undiguind Trade Recomables - Conssered Gopd
Unditputed Trade Receivable: - Conulderdd Doubiful
Dmputed Trade Rerevabled - Considersd Good
Disputed Tracke Necoivabibes - Comsldared Deubithul

D06

I7.87

Grand Tatal

ITa7

Dutstanding for following pariod from due date

As at
314t March 2023

A ot
Jist March 2022

Leets tham B mpnths
b manith - | year
11 yoary
-3 yeary
More than 3 pears

0.08

nar

Geand Total

1787

The carrying smounty of trade receivables & it the reporting date approsemate Talr value. Trade

bearing. Trade recesables are shown net of 2n allowance for had or doubtiul detss.

mmmmumm-hh-ﬁmm

recanabies arg predominently non-interes

Porticularn Ay ot As st
31st March 2023 311 March 2022
Cmh 60 hand ora 1184
Batances With Bank:
(] by Currmnt Acoownts 624 1184t
(B] In Fed Deposits - Original Matustty of 3 Monthy or Less 118 1.588.72
Grand Total 820 1787.010

Bank balances and term deposis with banks by the company on & shors
" artyhing amount of csh eguivalents B AT rEpant| g date ot falr value

ferm basis with original maturity of three mosths or less. The



Mote 11 Current Financial Aswets - Loans

A at % of Total Loan
T— 315t March 3023 114t March 203
[Ungecured, considered good)
() Loans sng Advances to Promoben . 0.00%
(o} Lowens and Advances to Directors (Refer Note 11(a) below) 3344 1A%
(&) Lowns and Advances w EMPs - 000
(4] Loans and Advancid 1o Relsted Partles [Reler Note 110a) bebow) ar4.62 BA1TR
(] Losms and Advances 18 Partes Other Than llelsted Pirthen 5193 29 348
[Refer Note 11(b) below])
Grand Total 1,356.38 100.00%
Az at % of Total Loan
- st March 2012 3lst March 2021
{Unseured, consigersd good)
|8] Loars and Advances to Promaten - 0.00%
[B) Lowres e Advamces to Directors (Refer Mote 11(a] below 1384 1.19%
el Losns pnd Advences ts KMPy - 0.00%
(6} Loans and Advances to Related Pactios (Refer Mote 1100) beiow) 125119 a15%
(] Loans and Advances 10 Parthes Other Than Related Partiey 154366 C4AER
Lhefer Mote 11(b) belov)
Grand Totasl yn.u 100, Drw.
Note 11{a) Loans and Advances to Promoters, Directon, KMP1 and Related Partios
As at Asan
11wt March 2023 315t March 2002
(@) V.. Sancheti (Loan Afc) 3384 1184
|} Davinutty Prodects. Private Limited 45.00 45,00
(&) Dracity Lite Sciences LLP . 5.00
|d) San Commercials Precste Lanited B3.00 £0.00
() Vet Rag Exploration & Minarals Private Limitesd A4 54 1.022.11
if] Vestrag Hospitality Frivate Limited 105.08 10%.08
Grand Total F58.46 1.191.03
* Loans ghen to relsted paries are repiyable on demand,
Mote 11{b) Loans and Advances to Parties Other than Relaved Parmies
Particad As ot Az st
313t March 2023 31t March 2032
(&} Advance to Employees 014 -
(B G H Ralsoni Unvaraity Amrasati . o0
[e] Fattech Engineering Private Limited . 300,00
1d] lain Enginsaring Works 1.7 L4365
Grand Total 397.52 1,543,686
* Loans given to parties other than related parties sre repayable on demand and interest is charged @ B9 s,
Note 12 Other Current Assets
As gt A at
11st March 2073 Biwt March 2022
TCS on Fastag Vehicles of March 2022 = 030
Tax Assets:
Tames Pakd 23229 53318
Intarme Tax Refundable FY 71-22 333.46 .
Incoime Tax Aefundsble Fy 19-20 44590 3/E05
— 1,010.74 910,30

W



Note 11

Othern

AT Credit Entitlerment 1,668 45 Las3Ta
Add : MAT Cradit Recogsised im FY 2320 J F¥ 21.33 [ &0, 404 174.7%
Les - Adjustment of Taw relating to eariier pariods 8.5} .

MAT Credit Entitiemen for Future Years 1,619.63 1,668 49

Prejuaid Enperast 13.66

G5T eceivabie - Coh | edgar 0.53

G5T Recelvable - Input Credit 0.04 1.7

Grand Total 263041 L0604 TS

Eguity Share Capltal

o Az @t Az at
31wt March 2023 315t March 2022

{#} Autharized Copltal :

1,50.00,000 (March 31, 2022 1.50,00.000) 1, 60000 1,600.00
Tauity Shates of the par walue of Ay, 10 sach

() vswed |

15000000 (March 31, 2023 1.60,00,000§ 1,600.00 1,5600.00
Equity Shares of the par walue of Ay 10 nach

(€] Suhscribed and Pald Up Capitai :

E60,00000 (March 31, 3077 1.60,00,000] 1,500,00 1,600,00

Equity Shares of the par value of Rs. 30 esch

Total 1,600.00 1, 600,00

{¢) Reconciliation of number of shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

Farticulars As at 315t March 2023 As at Y1sr March 2022

MNo. of Shares No. of Shares

Equity shares

Opaning Balance 160, 00,000 1,60,00,000

Agd :- Isued during the year - -

Shares sutstanding end of the year 1,60, 00,000 1,60,00,000

Particulars As it X5t March 2023 Az BE 31st March 2022

Amaunt Amaunt

Equity shares

Doaning Balance 1,600.00 1.600.00

&def ;- hsuad during the year . -

Shares outstanding end of the year 1,600.00 1, 600,00

|=) Detalls of sharehalders holding more than 5% of the ageregate shares in the company:

Particular As ot Kist March 2023 As 5t Vst Maich 2022

No. of Shares Nao. of Sharey

Equity shares of Re. 10 each fully paid up held by:

SARS Lid (Huodding Company] 1.50,00.000 1.80,00.000
Totsl 1,50,00,000 160,00 000

Parthculars &z at 315t March 2023 As a1 315t March 2002

%) %)

Eguity shares of Rs. 10 asch fully paid up held by:

S5 Lid. [Holding Companmy) 100.00% 100.00%
Total 100.00%. 100.00%




Mote 14

Mote 17

(T} Detais of shareholding of Promoters at the end of the Year in the company

Particutary As at 315t March 2023 As @t 315t March 2022
ha, of Sharey No. of Shares

Eguity shares of Re 10 each fully paid up held by:
845 Ltd, {Holding Company| 1,60,00, 000 1, 60,00, 00
Total .60, 00,000 1,60, 00,000
Particular As ot 31t March 2023 As ot 315t March 2022
(%] %)

Equity shares of R 10 each fully paid up held by:
SMTS Ltet [Hoiding Company) 100.00% 100.00%
Tolal 100.00% 100.00r%

(&) Terms , Rights , hﬂul“ﬂﬂnhtlﬂnmtnﬂlmﬂmn:
The Company Har nsued only one cleds of squity shate having & por vatue of Ri. 10/ par akare, Each sharehaider i3 entitied w0 one vole par
share. fach share it entitied to egual didend declared by the Company ind aporoved by the shareholders of the Compamy.
In it eveivt of liguidotion, ach share carry equal rights and will be entitied to receive squal amount per share out of the FRmaining armount
svillable after making prefentiat paymants.

Fursuant to Concession Agreement dated 05.03 2013 entersd Into betwesn the company and National Highway Autharlty of india |, the
aggregate equity sharahokding of SMSRL (Bidder) togather with it sssociates , In the sued and paid up squity of the concessionaire shall not

decline below 51% during the concession pesiod | Clause 5.3 of the Agresment)

Other Equity
Retalned Earnings

As at

Partieularn
3t March 2023

Aa ot
31t March 2022

Retained Larmings:
At the commencement of the year
Aapd: Profit during the Year

Cloging Balance

751849
0.8
7,538.68

6,492,280
LIGE 23
7,518.48

Grand Total 7,538.68

751885

Maon-Current Financial Liability - Pravislons

e Xlat March 223

Ag at
315t March 2007

Provision for Toll Rghts

5.899.56

Grand Total =

5.499.56

Maon-Current Financial Lsbility - Loass Lisb#iries

Particudars ik
315t March 2023

Aaan
313t March 2022

Hent - Financial Lease Liablity -

6.1

Grand Total

6.72

Current Finandlal Liabillty - Borrowings

Fartlculany Aam
3182 March 2023

At
st March 2002

501 DO Agwirst FD

141647

Grand Total =

Current Financial Liability - Trade Payables

Particutars As ot
115t March 3073

As ot
31t March 2022

Mhwro, Smatl and Medium Enterptize <
Overs (Deriod breabup given betow) 38 10
Dispated - Micrn, Small and Medium Enterprise ;
Diggartod - v "

Grand Tatal




Outstanding for fallowing periods from dus date of payment fask e m

Xist Marzh 2013 ALst March 2022
Legs than | yesr 210 151601
1:2 yeary - -
-3 years
More than 1 years - -
Grand Tatal MLID 1,516.01

Tradie Payables are non-interost bearing
For explanations an the Campamy's credit rish management processesy, refer to Note, 30

& There are no amounts due to the suppliens covered under w:u.hmmdmmmhmhum;mm Act, 2008 this infarmation
UEkes imin Becount oaly these supplien whe have responded 1o the enguries made by the Company for this purpese. This hat been relled
upon by the suditons md sccondingly no additionsl disclouires hive been made

Note 15

Note 20

Note 71

Cisrrent Financial Lisbility - Dther Fiasncial Lisbilitles

As st As ot
Putticum 31 Maich 2003 315t March 2022
Unsecured Losns - Repaysble on Demand
« from S5 Limited 5424 67 284548
- fram Bafa Earth Mowers Limited 500.00 500 48
from Badjate Stock Broking Pyt Limited Q247 93000
- fram Spark Mail & Parking Pyt Limited - 107358
=~ Hroumn Baisakhi Trade Link Pyt Limited - 300.00
Total 601673 5,745.94
Other Payables
Secursy Dwpaail for Sile of Srmart Cand . 15
Salary & Wages Payabile 527 3450
Peiwinian for Comuftancy Charges L a7
Gratuty Payable 1158 17437
Stupend Payable . 457
Labossr Paymant Payable 30 1312
Benus Payable 1028 1161
Telmphane & intermet Exp Payabile . o4
Fower snd light Payable 155 -
Piral Cavdl Liabilities Payabils ! Gid
Grand Total 6,064.01 00054
Current Financial Llabifity - Proviions
Az at Ag at
il Aisr March 2023 31st March 2072
Current Tax Liabilivy ;
Provisan lar income Tes - 18570
Total 18870
Othar :
Rementon Money from Ganpati infratech o40
Workers Ceus Payable - 02
Providesit Fund Paysble 112 402
TOS Payatis 1850 32353
5T Payabie 169 152
It st Payabie on TDS/TCS - 400
Grand Totsl 2083 23538

Current Financial Lisbility - Other Current Liabilities

Mabilisation Advance From [MHAK)

107 44

Grand Totsl




AYODHYA GORAKHPUR SMS TOLLS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to and forming part of Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March 2023

Note 22 Revenue from Operations In ¥ Lakhs
Perlod Ended Period Ended
. 315t March 2023 31st March 2022
Sale of Services
-Tall Callection 111931 42,946.24
- Construction Revenue 188.64 35.58
Grand Total IJI.EILII ugm.n
MNote 23 Other Income
Period Ended Period Ended
= 315t March 2023 315t March 2022
« Intérest Income 180.88 18818
- Miscellaneous Income 14,65 8911
Grand Tatal 195.54 1%7.30
Note 24 Material Consumed
Period Ended Period Ended
dhesooni 315t March 2023 315t March 2022
Opening Stock 88.56 11.46
{+] Purchases 222 B4 T72.14
(<) Sales v -
{-] Closing Stock - (B8.5E)
SrandTotsl TR §35.00
MNote 25 Operating & Maintenance Expenses
Period Ended Period Ended
Pacticulars 315t March 2023 315t March 2022
Concession Fees 3,205.61 -
Change of Scope 101.80 27,63
Additional Fee Charges for Non Fastag Vehicles 58.00 253.44
Project Faciity Maintenances 40,40 88.41
Site Civil Work 176.86 142.36
Mtaching Hire Charges 16,73 E8.08
Toll Expensas 691 - 12:61
Safaty & Security Expenses 33.87 85.15
Annuzl Maintainance Charges (Tall Collection System) 11.31 42,71
w u
Note 26 Employes Beneft Expenses
Particulars Period Ended Period Ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Salary and Wages 816,97 101672
Medical Expenses 4.19 7.23
Contribution to PF and ESIC 35.63 55.20
Staff Welfare Expenses 12,38 16.48
Gratuity Expenses {31.89) 5,13
Worker/Labour Cass 0.87 0.12
Grand Total 838,15 Lio8T,




Note 27 Finance Costs

’ Period Ended Period Ended

g 315t March 2023 318t March 2022
Interest Expanse 334.23 1,037 86
Bank Charges 0.23 a.44
Bank Guarantes Commission 2020 53.48

Grand Total __&—-4%_ L
Note 28 Other Expenses
Period Ended Period Ended
]
- 31st March 2023 !!._11 March 2022
(A} Exchange Fluctuations
Fair Valuation Loss on Equity Instruments 505.12 1,452.07
Total 505.12 Ilﬂl.l}?
(8) Running and Maintenance
= Yichicle 11488 141.15
- Generator 149,58 116.68
Repale and Maintenances - Others 4783 172
Insurance Expenses 4.50 444
Rent Rates and Taxps 25.34 85.75
Business Promotion Expences 4,19 6.37
Power and Light 24,37 3155
Lodiging and Fooding Experises 15.94 1809
Office Expenses 4.38 442
Transportation 251 024
C5R Expenditure 45,60 35.00
Misclleneous Expenses 2161 102
Consultancy Charges 74.66 10352
Postage and Courier 0.01 003
Printing & Statlonary 170 163
Audit fees 120 137
Telephoneg, Fax and Internet Expenses 391 846
Travelling and Conveyance 456 2.89
Total & 547.00 HIH
Grand Total = = m 2,153.80
Note 23 Other Comprehensive income
Period Ended Period Ended
Partloulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Actuarial Loss on Gratuity Valuation . {088}

Grand Total




AYODHYA GORAKHPUR SMS TOLLS PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to Financial Statements as at X1st March, 2023:

Financial Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following reks arising from financal instrements:

Credit rlak |

Liguidity risk

Rigk management framework

Rizk Management | the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by coordinated efforts to minimise, monitos and
mitsgate/control the probatility andfor impact of unlorfunate events or to maximes the reafization of opportunities. The Company(s) board of
directary i primarlly responsible to develop atd monitor Company|s) Risk management framework The Company has laid down 2 comprehensive Risk
Assessment and Minimization Procedure which i reviewsd by the Board from time to time. The Dirsctors themsabves perindically sssess rsks in the
intermal and external environmaent as alsa alements of risk, if any, which may threaten the extence of the company.

Credit rish

Croeit rigk i the risk of Mnancial lows 1o the company I 3 customr o countarjaarty 10 & Ninancial nitrement falls to mest It contractual obligations.
Credit rigk on its recenvables s recognised on the statement of financial pesition at the carrying @mount of those recesvable assets. net of any provisions
far doubthl debts. Ascelvabls balsntes and depoalt balarices ang manliored on o regular basis with the result thet the compamy’s exposre to bad

debts 15 not conssdered to be material with an aoprooriate credit history.
The Compamy dases not hive Bny credit ek outslde indls.

Cash equivalents & Other bank balances/depoilts

The Company held cash equivalents and other hank balances/deposits of INR 3,20 |akhs at March 31, 2003 [March 31, 202 INR 1, 787.00 kkhs] The
cash aquivalents and other bank balances/deposits 2re held with bank counterparmies with poad credit ratings.

Liguidity risk

Liquality mak Is the rik that an entity will encounter dificulty in mesting chligations ssociated with financial kabiities that are settied by delivering
cash or another financisl assets

The company is anposed to lguidity rigk dus to hank borrowings and trade and other payables.

The company measures risk by Torecisting cash {lows.

The company's approsch to managing Squidity ts 1o ensure, 35 far 3 possible, that it will abways hawe suffickent lquidity to meet is liabillities when due
without incurring unacceptable kawet or risking demoge to the Company's reputation. The Compony enscres thae i e wMiclent fund 16 mael
expected aperaticnsl espenses, servicing of finencizl oblisations.

Interest rate rivk
Interest rate rish ks the risk that the Fair value of future cinh flows of & finencial instrument will fluetuate because of changas in markst inferest rates.
The Company's exposare to the rsk of changes in market interest rates relales primasily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating
Interest rarey,
The company's éxposere to interest rate risk due to variable interest rate borrowings is as follows:-

Particulars 31L.03. 3023 31.03.2022

Variatile Rate borrowings (s n Laihs) ) /18 3155
Aay change i inferest rates will couse @ change in prafitsfoss of the compony.

Capital Managemeont

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital mcludes issued capital and other eguity reserves . The poimary objectve of the
Company’s Capital Management & Lo maximise sharsholders value. The Company manages its capltal structure and makes adjuitments in the light of
changes in economic envirenment 2nd the requirements of the financal covenants.

Price Risk

Price lsk bs tha rik that the fair valoes or future cash flows of a financal instrument will fluciuate becacse of changes in market prices {other than
thine grising from interest rate rick of Currency risk)

The company |5 eaposed L0 price risk due 10 investments i equity shares snd classified as fair value through profit and loss

The compamy measures risk through sensithity anabysls,

Particulars Note No 11.03.2023 1032022
Irvestmers in Listed Equity Shares {Rs in Likhs} 3 37453 9T
3r4.61 §79.72
—
Senitivity Anabpil
impact on profit/loss (R in Laihs)
Price Rk
Analyshs For the year ended Mar 31, mm-mﬂrun
Increane or decresse in Share Price by 5% 1873 4399

Note - In eoie of decregse in Share Price. profe will réduce and wice versa



Contingent liabillties and capital commitment
a) Contingent kabilitien:- Ma 21.86 Croves

Year ended Year ended
Fanticular 1151 March, 2023 a1 March, 3022
Inczimi Tax demand by 7T Degartment Rs'5.47 Crores Rs 4.52 Crores
Sarvica Tak demand by GST intalligence Department fs 17,19 Crares Rs 17.39 Crores
Hs 22.56 Crare fs 21.51 Croves

1) The Income Tas Dapartment vide s documnent number ITBA/AST/S/156/ 2021 22/1081046768(1) dated 19/03/2022 demanded an amount of Ry
4,52.00,150/- ageinm income Tax Assessment for AY 201516, Similarky, for AY 2016-17 Incoms Tax Department vide b document nismbser
ITBA/AST/S/156/2021-22/2041125603(1) duted 21/03/2022 made an addition to retum income and demanded an amount of fs 0=, However, Penalty
proceedings ware initiated in both the cases w/'s 271(1){c). The company has filed appeals with CIT|Appesis) for both the sbove mentionsd ALY, -

2} The income Tan Department vide ity document number CPC/2127/A5/312581991 dated 13/11/3053 demanded an amount of A3 54, B2 360/ against
AY 2031-22. The Company i in process of Niling Rectification of the same. The yame hat bosn communiceted 19 the Income Tas Departmant vidi letter
dated 03,/08/2023.

3] Show cause Cum Demand Notice dated 09.04.2019 vide document numbser DGGETNIUA 10/201 01558 was Hiued by G5T inteligence Department
and an amount of As 17,3903, 815/~ was demanded against Service Tax, Educarion Cess, Secondany and Higher Education Casy, Swachh Bharst Cess
and Krishi Kabyan Cets for period from Octobes 2013 Hll Jume 2017 Againgt the same the campany (ed #s reply dated 06,06, 2018, Since then, the
matter i§ pending without sny further notice from department.

&) The Comparly does not expect vy outflow of econonic resources |s respect of the abiove and therefore no provision is made in respect thereal.

5) The Company has reviewed all its pending Hsgations and proceadings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and discloud
contingent llabdities where applicable in its financial staternents. The Company has not provided for o disclosad cantingent lsbilities for matters
considered aj tevnite for pending ltigations mmm-whmwmmwm paseasment and advice of it lawyers
that these iitigations would rot result into @y mtms.mmﬂmmmmmmmﬂmmm have 5 materia adverse
effest an the financial statement:

Stamp Duty Letter by ULP. Treasury

1) The Company had received notice fram District Collector, Uttar Pradesh dated mnquﬂmmhnmmuumuwmpm
an the concrdsamn agreement between NHA and AGSTPL for operation and maintenance of Aycdiya-Gorakhpur Section in Uttsr Prodesh along with
penalty of Rs 21 50 Crores totaling to Rs 43.00 Crores,

2) InF¥ 19-20 and 20-21, the Company had deposited principal amount of stemp digy amaunting b Bs 21 50 Crored against natiee recebed from Diutect
Cofizctor, Uttar Pradesh to the Treasury Department (Stamp Authorities) of Uttar Pradesh, This amount was recovered from NHAL out of the monthiy
conciision faes payabie to the NHAL The Company has commisicatied this recovery vide ntier duted 19.05.2030 and NHA! has abo sdjusted the same
Concestion Fees =5 per the statement of accounts provided o us. )

3 The Company has again received notice fram District Collectar, Uttas Pradesh 20th May 2022 with regard 1o interest Rs 27.41 Crores and penaity Rs
2150 Crores totaing to Rs 48 91 Crores on stamp duty levied on the concmision agresment between NHAI and AGSTRL

£) The Company b filied various representations for withdrewal of arder for collection of wamp duty from concessions entered with NHAE for toll
coliection, on the ground that stamp dity not applicable on the infrastrschrs facsities develoged by MHAL Further NHAI and Ministry of Road,
Trarsport and Hghwayi- Government of 1ndia has sho filed representation to State Governmant of Urtar Pradesh on the above grounds.

5} The Company hat also reviewed snd compared the coneession agreement of NHA! with Company and recant tender's isswed by the NHAL i the recent
tender's, NHAI has incorporated sdditional terms and conditions whensin case tha stamg duty levied by State Government then 1he smoynt will be
borma by eoncessioner. Howewer, this condition I3 not applcabile in ur case snce thene are no prescribed terms and conditions in our conceLLEn
agreament evidenced by above adjustments theaugh Statemant of Atcounts of NHAL This armenided terms clearly highlights that prospectively NHAI
will not baar the cost of stamp duty but 1h¢mﬁmrmwﬂmhmﬂﬂbﬂmmmmqw%hﬂum

il In view of the above developmants the Compary i of the view that in case the stamp suthoritses recovared the intarest and panalty fram the Company
in futura, then the said amousst will be recovered from NHAI as evidenced by above adjustments through Statement of Accounts of NHAL Accordingdy,
if libility mrises in futues the sarme will be borne exchiivel: by NHAI sad there will nat b ary bmpoct on the Company’s linanc/s| statement.

Payment to the auditors Year ended Year ended
Hist March, 2023 31t March, 2021
¥ Lakhy ¥ Lakha

A pudlbors - Stetutony audit 045 0.a%
Tan sudit 025 0.25
Marags et Consyltancy 030 0.30
For other services 0.0 0.20

1.20 1.20

There are fe smounts due ko the suppliers coversd urdar Micr, Small and Medium Enterprses Developmans Act, 2006; this information takes into
account anly thowe suppliers whe have responded to the enguiries mads by the Compatry for this purpose, This has been relied upan by the auditors.



L1

Corporate Social Responaibifity

Az per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2011, & company mesting the appleabdity threshold, nesds to spand at least 2% of its average net profits for
the immedutely preceeding three financial years on corparate socisl nes ponslbility (CSR) activities. The sreas for CSR sctivities are eradication of
hunger and malnutrithon, promoting education, artand cufture, healthoare, destitute care and rehabllitation, ervironment sustanability, diszster refief
Al vl devilopmient projects, A CSR committes hat been formed by the Company it per the Act.

Al Marmer af telsted parties whers contrul met

Habding Company:
M5 Liméted

¥ Lakhs
Gross Amount Required 1o be Excess of Fr 21-22 Amount
Froposed to be spent lowards spent for FY 2223 1 5
Education promation or Health care faclities) programme 45.71 o.47 4580

and espousing social causes.
Spent through GH Ralkani Unlversity, Amravatl

Giroas armnount requined 1o be spént by the Company for FY 2022-23 wss Rs 45, 71306/ towards C5R expenditure. Out of this the company had an
excess amaunt ipand of Rs 46, TER/. refating 1 FY 3021-27 which s allowesd to be set off agminat Current year expenditure,

The Salance CS& amaunt of Rs. 45,29 418/ was proposed to be spent towards Education premation or Health care facilites) programme and
BEpauTing sOCial causes

The company spent an amount of Rs 45,560,000/~ towards educational promation through institution named GH Raisoni University, Amravati, It is 3
Private University establishid under Madhyas Pradesh, NI Vishwavidyalays Adhiniyarm 3007 in the year 2016-17 and n engaged in imparting education
and operstes in one segment predominantly o India. There was no shartfall in amount spent for Crrent or any of the previous Financisl Years,

Excess amount of As 35,582/ over and sbove the requirement specified under the Act for FY 2022-23 s carriad forward and will be et off in the
ersuing FY 2023-24 ps CSR Contribution i approved by the Minstry,

Segment nfornation

Primary busineis segments

The Group has organized its oparations m1o two busmess ssgments: Toll Collection and Construction

Toll Collection:

Collaction of foll as wmwmmmm:hmmmmmmmmtmhnmum roads and
illled structures 1o Its subsidiaries

Comtruction;

Construction of roads &5 per the Engineening, Procurement and Construction (EPC) Comtracts entered into for exscution,

The following tables preient reveriue snd profit information regarding the butiness segments for the year ended March 31, 2023 and certain asset and
Egbilty information regarding industry segments-as at March 31, 2023

infarmation about reportable segments

® Lkl
Partkulars Tioll Collection Construction Total
Stgments
Revenue
External Customens 1.9 188 64 11,981 64
Inter-gegment = % :
Total Revenue Lrmean 188.64 11,6881 B4
Sagment profit / [loss) 21,606.69 7.0 ymn
before exceptional items and tax
identiflabile operating sxpente: ' 10082 1e1E0
Allocated sipenses . - .
Dupreciation and amortizition 8,106.52 . 910652
Segment amsets 1526151 - 1526261
Segment Labilitie 612353 . 61¥343
Capital expenditure - . v
Reconcliation of imformation an roportable segments to lnd AS
Particulars Nate Az at March 31, 2023
Tatal profit before exceptional items and tax for repartalie imamn
Lgments
Unallocated amounty:
= Other Expenses {2.900.22)
= Othar Incomi 19554
To:ﬂwuﬂthefwntqniwnmandmhmm 69.04
Bplated Party Siardimars




List of all Subzidizries. Assnclates, loint Venture of Holding Company are ot follows:

Meghe Smi Heafth Soences Consortium (5PV)
SMS infrastructure [1d. Shreenath Enterprises 1.

* Subsidiary Companies
1 5MS Waste Management Put, Ltd. y 10 SMS-RARS ndla Tollways Private Limited
2 GMIS Emvoclean Pot. Led. 11 Maharashira Envirg Power Lid.
3 55 Infolink Pyt. Lid. 12 PT. 5MI5 Mines Indanesls
4 5kt Mining Limited 13 PT.5M5 Minerali Intermational
5 Spark Mall B Parking Pvi (td. 14 ShA5 Hagnrdous Waste Maragement Put. L2d
& SIS Tam Cabs Pyt Lid. (Formerly Known a2 SMS Mine Developers Pui. Lid)
T SME Vidyut Pyt Lid, 15 SMSL Kethl MDO Project Umited
B 505 Wiatar Grace BMW Pve. Ltd
2 5SS Tolls And Developers Lid,
* Assoclates
1 RCCL infrastructurs Lid, I SM5 AARW Tollways Pur (1d
* Jolnt Vertures
1 Ahartiz SMSIL (V) 11 SMS infrastructure Ltd. & O Thakiar Constrisction Byt Lid. IV
I GOCL B SMS Ltd. Iy 12 Shaktiurmar M, Ssncheti Lid, & § N Thakker Construction #vi. Lid Jv
3 SRACIALAMSL [Iv) 13 SMSILKTCE [IV)
4 SRECIPL-SMSL-BEKEM Jv 14 SMSIL-MBEPL [IV)
5 SMS Infrastructure Lid - Aarti trfra-Profects Pvt. Lid. IV 15 SMSL-SRRCIFL (V)
E SMEIL-MBPL-BRAPL (V) 16 AGIPL-SMSIL (V]
TGS Envo Ltd, In consortion with SMS Isfrastructune Lid. 17 Saket - SMEIL [IV)
B Sanbro Corporstean 18 SRACHEL-SMSL (IV]-Mahabubragar
£
10

Key management personnek:

Mr. [Slip Saerania, Managing Oiwoctor

Mr. Dattatraya Kinage, Whols Time Director (Resigned on 315t march 033
M., Vilay Sanchet, Whaole Time Dinector (Resigned on 31t mareh 2023)
Mir. Akshay Abhay Sancheti, Director [Appalnted on Tst Agrll 2023)

Mr. Pradyusmna Paraniape, Dirsctor

Mr. Bzdrish Maklak, Chief Financial Officer

M Ankits Hande, Company Secretary

Other Related Parties

Arul Multiobjecthes Oiganisation
Dwinutty Products Privete Limited
Oracity Lite Sclences LLP

San Commercials Private Limited

San Fmance Corporation

Vaat iag Exglorstion & Mineraks Pet Ltd
Woutrag Hospitality Pt Lid

Disciosures of materisl transactions with relsted parties snd balances

Hame of the related party [Mature of transactions
S5 Limited Reimburserment of expenses

Othar Serviced Nandersd 109 ‘

|Advance far Survey) L i

Unsecured Loan Taken B.545.31 -

(7. 730.80) H
Uniecured Loan Repayment 7,066.03 l

16, 066.35) =)

NET UNSECURED LOAN PAYABLE . 542467

- Iitriﬂ.“]‘




Dtvinutty Products Private Lmited

Oracity Life Schnces LLP

\5ar Commerclals Pyt Ltd

Veairag Hospltality Pyt Lt

Veet Rag Exploration & Minerals Put Lid

Spark Mall and Parking Private Limited

|, igay Kisanlal Sancheti,
Whaie Time Director

Mir. Drattatroya Lasmanreo Kinags,
Whaole Time Director

Wiz Ankita Hande
Cofnpany Secratary

Salm of Fived Assets.
Interest Paid
Veshicle Hire Charges

lﬁwm‘l: of B5 commission

Loan Given
NET LDAN RECEIVABLE)

Arpayment of Loan
(Recered)

INET LOAN RECEIVABLE)

Loan Gwen
(NET LOAN RECEIVABLE)

|l.un Given
LOAN RECEIVABLE)

Loan Gwen

Repzyment of Loan

INET LOAN RECEIVARLE]

Loan Repaed

NET UNSECURED LOAN PAYARLE

Salary

Bonus

Loan given
KET LOAN RECEIVASLE

15373
[252.65)

(1758)
[45.24)
H1

5,00}

1820
(1724}

152
1250

Ly

834
{28.30)

n
[3.89)

240
(L0}

]
{3.36)

a1
{0ag

i
Ly
{45.00]|

|

()

&
(33.54]

{-h



Orher Adwances for experes

[Mr. Vijay Kisankl Sancheti, Arfvances 7
Whale Time Director
Mr. Dattatraya Lanmasnrao Kinage, \Advances

Whale Tima Disechor

Footnotes:
[l Figures in brackets ace the corresponding fgures in respect of the provious year.
fil}  #\obilization Advance ks in respect of Change of scope Work.

Basic earnings per share have been calculated by dviding profit after tax attributable to squity shareholders by the weighted avurage numbar of squity sharss
outstanding during the year. The Company had net Maued bhy patential Equity shares and accordingly, the baslc earnings per share and diluted earnings per
share are the same, Valuis wied in calcutating earmings por share are as undear|

Yeor ended Year anded
315t March, 2023 A1st March, 2022
(a)  Numerator: Profit sfter tas (in " Lakha) 20.18 102622
[b]  Densminatorn
‘Weighted average rumber of eguity shares 1,60, 00, 000 1.60,00.000
feh  Basic, 35 well &s diluted, earnings per equity sharz [in " | 013 641
Capazl Commitments
Year endod Yest ended
i e 313t March, 2023 st March, 2022

Estimated smowunt of contracts remaining . =
o be ewecuted on capital account{Overiay] [net of sdvances)

Employes Benefis

A, Defined Contribsution Plan

The Company makes provident fund, Employees State insurance and Maharashira Labowr Weltars Fund contributions foe eligible Employies Under the
schemas, the Company is required 1o contrivute a specified percentage |/ fued amount of the payroll costs te fund the benefits. The contributions as specified
undes the lew are paid to the s parcTive fund set up by the govermment aitharity,

The Company has recognised the following smaunts (Rs kn Lakbs) in the Statement of Profir and Logs for the year =

Year ended Year ended
——— 313t March, 2023 A1st March, 2032
Employer's contribution to Provident Fung 3412 5283
Emgicyer’s contfibution fo Employes state Imurance 37
Corparatan 1.51
Total 3543 55.20

B. Defined Benefis Dbligations - Gratulty
The gratuity plan is governied by the Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972 under which an emplayee who has completed five years of seevice & antitied to specific
Eerfits, Tha lrved of banafits provided depends on the member's langth of service and salary st fetirement age.

TABLE I: ASSUMPTIONS

A ; Year ended Year ended
31t March, 2023 30st March, 2022
Descount Rate a 6. 15% par annum
Aate of increase In Compensation Lavels KA 7.00% per annum
‘Rate of Return on Plan Assets ha L TY
Aeerage Future Service M 2371 Years
TABLE 1) CHANGES IN PRESENT VALUE OF OBLIGATIONS
Yar ended Year ended
Particular
— MstMarch, 2083 3larMarch. 2022
Qpening of defined benefit oblgations 17427 150,88
Bervice Cost - 16.39
Interest Cont . %]
Benelit pasd {151.59) [&82)
Actusrial (Gainlfloss oo 1otsl labities . 088

Cloting of defined benefit abligations 1188 174.7




TABLE I OTHER COMPREMENSIVE INCOME

Particulsr Year ended Year endad
_ 3lstMareh, 2023 3131 March, 2022
Opening amount retognized in OC) outside PAL account ¥
Actunrisl Gain/[Loss) on Lisbilities oLe8)
Actuarial Gainf{Loss] on Assets -
Cloaing Amourt recegnised I DO outikde PEL sczount (0LERY
TABLE Iv: THE AMOUNT TD BE RECOGNIZED |N BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT
' Tear ended Yeur ended
Wi 315t March, 2023 314t March, 2022
Present Value of Dbligations 12,68 17427
Fasr Value of Plan Asssts - -
Met Obligations 1168 174.27
Amaunt nob recognizsd die 1o Adset Limit - -
Net Defined Banafit Labllay/iAswrts) recognised i Balance 1268 174.27
Shest
TABLE V- EXPENSE RECOGNIZED IN STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
Year ended Year ended
Thn 315 March, 2023 3181 2022
Service Coat 16.39
et intzrest Cost Ela
Lxperise recognired in Statemand of Profit & Loss .13
TABLE WI; CHAMNGE 1M NET DEFINED OBLIGATIONS
Tear ended Year endad
e 315t March, 2003 S1st March, 2022
Opening of Met Defined Benefit Liatilty 174,27 150,88
Seruncie Cost . 16.39
Nt intereat Cost B4
Re-measurements - 088
Contribunan Paid to Fund [151.53) |2.62)
Clgsing Net Defined Benefit Liabaity 2268 17427
41 RATHOS
a.  Financlal Performance Ratle
5 Mo Ratio = Numerator [ Denominator Note No As at Zlst March, 2022 As 8t 3135t March, 2021 Varlance
i Current Ratia = Current Assots / Current Lishilities - .65 an -4.50r%
2 Debt Equity Ratic = Total Debis / Sharshalders Equiy - 066 063 4.72%
Dbt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before interest, Tax, 79 049 57.19%
3 Depraciation & Amartidation [ interest and Principal 1
Repayeent of Long Term Debi within one year
g  mterest Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before Interest 2 1.07 223 <19.03%
bt after Tax / Interast Expenses
& Return on Equity Ratio = Profit After Tao / Awerage 3 ouOa22 12 5734.35%
Sharehalder Equity
" Inventory Turnower Ratio « Bevenue from Operation / 4 Ny WA NA&
Average nventory
b Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio = Revenue from 5 BS7.97 1388 TinN
Oparstions / Avesage Trade Receivables
B Trade Payables Turnover Ratlo = Total caih enpenses |/ % B EH L 1.50%
Average Trade Payabley
M Kt Capital Turnoeer Ratio = Aeverus from Operation | 5 is7 .50 B 5N

Average Working Capaal



10 Net Profit Ratio « Probit After Tax / Revenue from Operations 3 T, A0s. AN

1 Return on Capital Employed = Profit before taw and Interest B 005 026 436.95%
/ Capital Employed
Returm on Investments = Income Generated from y {0,048 (015} 18 TN

L Investinants | Choging Investments

b Reascmw for Varisnce

Varlaiton i due 10 reduction in debs of the company.

Varkstion & dus to decreass in profits because of fair valuation of invessments and reduction in debt of the company.

Vartion & dus to Projact Completion as revenue was earned Ul 02nd Ooiober 203 byt expense were [nourred during the whole year.
Irventory Turnewer Ratio is nat applicable to the company

Varsathon & due to reduction in Trade Recelvabiss balance a5 on 3181 March 2023,

Varation it due to reduction n Revenue from Operations 3s Project got completed on 0Ind October 2022,

Yariation i dus 1o fair valuztion of mvestments 25 on 315t March 2023 and 313t March 2022

~ WO e W RS

The title In respect of sed-corutracied bullding and tile deeds of all pther immovable praperties [other than properties where the Companyls the lsses and
£ the loase agresments are duly executed in favour of the lessea), disclosed in the Financial Statzments incluted under Property, Plant and Equipment are held
i the rame of the Company,

d. The Company does not Bave amy Denaemi Property, whers any proceeding has been initisted or pending against the Company for holding any Banami Property,

Tha Company does not have Working Capital Limit comprising of Fund based and Non Fund based facilities. The Company is ako not reguited to comply with
Cuartzrly Information Statement or submisslon of Stock and Debitar Statement on monthly basis to bank.

The Company has not been declared a5 = willlul defauter by any lender who bas powers to decisre a company &s 2 willful detsulter at any time during the
financial year or after the end of repart ing period bt before the date whon the finesclal statements ate approved.

g The Compary does not hive any ransactions with struck-off comgpanies.
b, The Company does nat have amy charges or satisfaction which s yet Lo be registered with the Regiitrae of Companies (RDC] beyond the statutory period.

The Company has complied with the number of byers presoribed under clause (A7) of section 2 of the Companies Act 2013 resd with Companies (Restrictions
o runber of Layer] Rules, 2007,

Tha Comparny ha mat advanced or loaned of imvesied funds (o sy other peron (i) o entiy{ies), including fareign entites (intermediares) with the
understanding that the miermediary shall
Directly or indirectly lend of invest in other persans or prdities identified in any manner whatsosver by or on bahalf of the Company (Uitimate
Beneficiangs], or
il Provide smy gusrsntes, sacurity or the Ui to or om behall of the Uitimats Benaficlarise.

L The Company hias not recstved any funds from any personis) o entityfies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded
in wriing or atherwise) that the Company shall -
| trirectly or indirectly lend of invest in other persens or ertithes dentified in any manner whatsoeyver by or on behal of the funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficianes), of
i Prowioe any guaranise, socurity of the Wit to or on behad of the Uitimate Baneficanes.

| The Compamy doss not have any transactions which is nol recorded (n the boaks of accounts bt has Been surrendered or discinsed s income during the year
i the taa mssdsments wnder the Incorme Tax Act, 1961 (such a3 search o survey or any other relevant provisions of the income Tae Act, 1961)

m. Tha Campany has not traded or investad in Crypto Currency of Virtual Currency during Uhe Finsscial Tear.

42 Merger of Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS Tolls Private Limited with SMS Limited
The Company & in process of Mesger with its Parent Company - SM% UMITED. The Company vide s Boked Resclution dated 05th lanuery 2023
approved the same. The appointed date of merger as per merges ptition filed with National Company Law Tribunal [NCLT) is 01103032, Howsver,
1. finst order | apgroval for mesger from NCLT & in process. Due to which, the Company has prepaned its finaacial statement without considenng the
frerger desplte tha tact that e appointed date was 011002032 After approval from NCLT, the Company will incorporate the effect of merger in the
wiemr in which approval will be recened.
Il Podt Merger, il assets and labilities will merge with Parent Company and Ayodhys Gotakhput SMS Toll Private Limited will coase 1o exist,



43 Subsequent Events

As per RErL Statement on Developmantal and Regutatory Policies [sswed on May 22, 2020, the Company has availed the rellefl provided by i landae by iy
meratarium on cerain princpal repayments and repayment schadule has bean madifled accond nghy.

43 General;
A The figures hiave bsen rounded off to the nesrest rupees lakhs.
8. Ay other accounting policy not specifically referned 1o are consistent with Indian GAAP,
. Previous year figures are regrouped | reclassified wherever necessary.

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors
Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS Tolls Private Umited

™
arlal Surana Akshay Abhay Sancheti
Managing Director Director
DiN-00953295 DiN-07564577

Badrish Maklak Ankita Hande
Chief Financial Officer : Company Secretary Ly g



